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THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is why | have allowed.
SHRI GHULAM NAB! AZAD: And see that is the reply.

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, we take up the Calling Attention.
Mr. Dipankar Mukherjee.

CALLING ATTENTION TO MATTER OF URGENT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE

Issues arising out of decision of VSNL Board to invest Rs. 1200 crores in
Tata Tele Services Ltd.

SHAI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE (West Bengal): Madam, | beg to
call the attention of the Minister of . Communications and Information
Technology on the issues arising out of the decision of the VENL Board to
invest Rs.1200 crores in TATA Tele Services Lid.

[The Vice-Chairman, Shri Suresh Pachouri, in the Chair.}

THE MINISTER OF COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY {SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN): Sir, the Government has
disinvested 25 per cent Govarnment equity in Videsh Sanchar Nigam Ltd. to
a strategic partner, M/s. Panatone Finvest Limited through due
disinvestment process. The Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) was signed
on 68" February, 2002 and the Share Holder Agreement (SHA) was signed on
13" February 2002. The strategic partner paid the consideration on 13"
February, 2002 and took over the management control of VSNL.

A notice for convening the 127" meeting of the Board of Directors
of VBNL for 28" May, 2002 was received on 21% May, 2002. Agenda for the
meeting included an agenda item 8.11 "o consider inter-corporate
investment up to Rs.1200 crore in the equity of an indian company holding
Basic Service Operator (BSO} license." No details about the targeted
company were given in the agenda item.

The Board meeting was attended by one of the two Government
nominee Directors, namely Shri Rakesh Kumar, Sr, DDG (SU), Department of
Telecommunications. Shri ¥.S. Bhave, Joint Secretary, Department of
Information and Technology, the other Government nominee Director could
not attend the meeting as he was on tour abroad.

The Government Director, Shri Rakesh Kumar, has informed that
during the meeting, a presentation was made by Direcior (Operations) of
VSNL, giving justification for the need for making such an inter-corporate
invastment without mentioning the targeted company. The Government
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Director has further informed DoT that during the meeting, he made several
observations and raised objections on the above matter.

immediately after the Board meeting, VSNL informed the Stock
Exchange that the Board of Directors of VSNL had approved the inter-
corporate investment of up to Rs.1200 crores in the equity share capital of
Tata Tele Services Ltd. A committee of three Directors, viz. Shri Subodh
Bhargava, Shri S.K.Gupta and Shri N. Srinath was constituted to undertake
all such acts and deeds in relation to such inter-corporate investment.

On 29" May, 2002, the Government nominee Director through a
letter addressad to VSNL disputed the fact that it was a unanimous decision
as he had raised objections during the meeting. Further he did not give any
positive consent to the proposal. He also raised certain other issues
regarding late raceipt of notice and incomplete agenda material.

However, VSNL through a letter of 30™ May, 2002, refuted the
above position mentioned by the Government nominee Director, The
Government nominee Directer in rebuttal reiterated his stated position
through his letter dated 31™ May, 2002 that the decision was not unanimous.

On 31* May, 2002, the Department of Telecom. wrote toVSNL that
without prejudice to the stand of the Government Director and
notwithstanding what transpired and happened so far, the scope and the
terms of reference of the Committee appointed by VSNL Board may be
again set cut and redefined to include full analysis and consideration of the
desirability of such an investment by VSNL in Tata Tele Services Limited
and, thereafter, the matter may be taken to the Board for a final decision.
It was also suggested that one of the Government Directors may be made a
member of the said Committee.

After further exchange of correspondence, VSNL accapted the
suggestions of the Department of Telecom and on the issue of the
investment in Tata Tele Services Ltd., VSNL Board has constituted a
Committee  in  consultation with the Government, which includes a
Government nominee Director, Shri Y.S. Bhave, together with Shri Subodh
Bhargava, Shri S. K. Gupta and Shri N. Srinath. The scope and terms of
reference of the Committee are as follows:

a) to study and decide the quantum and the valuation/price at which
the investment will be made by VSNL in TTSL at various points of
time;
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b} to decide the trenches and periodicity of investment in TTSL,;

c) to negotiate, finalise and execute shareholders' agreements and
other contractual arrangements with TTSL to best protect the
interests of VSNL in respect of the investmaent;

d) to determing conditions of draw down of the investment to TTSL
linked to defined milestones to be achieved by TTSL;

e) to play a constructive role in the manner in which TTSL utilizes and
applies the investment;

fy to identify and quantify any additional investment opportunities
which are more attractive and submit the sarme to the Board for its
consideration;

g} such other functions may be delegated to it by the Board from
time to time.

The Committes is expected to submit its report by 15" August, 2002.

The first meeting of the Committee was held on 29" July. The next
meeting will be on 8" August, 2002.

Further, the Department of Telecom (DoT) has been informed by
the Government Director that during the 128" Board Mesting of VSNL held
on 20™ July, 2002, the VSNL Board has agreed to take on record various
letters from Government Director {dated May 29, May 31 and July 25, 2002)
indicating his objections/ocbservations and reservations on the proposal of
VSNL for inter-corporate investment up to the level of Rs.1200 crores in the
equity of an Indian company holding BSO licence.

Through active participation by the nominated Government Director
in the Committee and both the Government Directors on the Board,
Government will make all efforts 10 protect its 26 per cent equity interest in
the Company.

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: Sir, | refer to the last paragraph of
the Minister's statement, wherein it is stated, "Through active participation
by the nominated Government Director in the Committee and both the
Government Directors on the Board, Government will make all efforts to
protect its 26% equity interest in the Company.” | am afraid, Sir, when | call
the attention of the Minister, it is not only for protecting the interests of the
26 per cent equity left, but the .issue is much bigger. | would also like to
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point out to the House that as he is well aware--he is the Parliamentary
Affairs Minister aiso--whether it is one per cent or 100 per cent of squity,
the President ol India holds the share and for this whole thing, the
controlling authority is the Minister of Comrmunications., So, whatever has
happened in between regarding the dilution of equity, it is the Mifister of
Cormmunications who is actually accountable to Parliament and through him,
all of us, Parliament itself, are accountable to the shareholders of this
company, that is, the people of this country. it is not only a guestion of
protection of the 26 per cent of rights.

Before | start, | just wanted 1o know for my information. After
whatever action has been taken in hindsight by the Government, where
doss it stand? The VSNL informed the Stock Exchange that the VSNL had
approved this inter-corporate investment ol Rs.1200 crores. Have they got
back this information? What is the status so far as the decision of the
Board is concerned?

Sir, | think this, 2 document from the Department of Disinvestment,
is circulated to all the Members of Parliament. | treat the Government as an
indivisible entity. | do not know whether the present Government thinks so
or not. | doubt it. 1 wil come to that afterwards. Now, in this
Disinvestment Policy and Procedure, which is circulated by the Ministry of
Disinvestment among all the Members of Parliament, it is very clearly
indicated that the shareholders’ agreement is entered inlo among the
President of India, acting through the Joint Secretary of the Administrative
Ministry, the company, the strategic partner and the other principals as
applicable. So, on paper, it is the Ministry of Communications. The Joint
Secretary of the Ministry of Communications has signed the sharsholders’
agreement. What is the shareholders' agreement? | quote from this Policy
and Procedure of Disinvestment Ministry. "It defines the rights and
obligations of the party. Concerns of the Government on protection of
employees' right, future investment business plans and the precautions
against assets stripping are generally reflected in it.”

My guestion is, as an Administrative Ministry, who has signed the
shareholders agreement, with what clauses would the Minister come to the
House? Which clauses have protected the future investment plans and what
are the precautions against assets stripping? What were the clauses
governing the future investment and business plans? How was it that there
was no safeguard within the shareholders agreement after the whole thing
has happened? | am treating this as a sample case. But, the whole dubicus
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process of disinvestment which has been done in this country for disposal
of public assets. Now, here is a sample case. After the diversion of Rs.
1200 crores, the Government has become alert and taken certain action.
But, what about the sharehclders' agresment ? Is there no such inherent
inbuilt protection to see that the interests of the shareholders are protected?
Is thera no such safeguard to see that the interests of the people, whose
assets are there, have been protected? How is it that the sharehclders’
agreement has not taken into consideration the safeguards which the
Government intends to take, that is, the formation of a Sub-Commitiee in
the Board? So far as the future investment plans are concerned, what are
the protections against the assets stripping ? What was the precaution
against the assets stripping? | have a guotation wharein, the Minister has
said somsthing, and | agree with him. Is it not a clear case of assets
stripping? This is the fundamental question. What is the real cost according
to the Administrative Ministry so far as selling of the VSNL is concerned?
What is the real cost involved? As a layman, | can say that it is Rs. 1436
crores. | do not want to go into the technicalities. For technicalities part,
someone else will have to see the company law experts. So, the amount
involved is Hs. 1436 crores, plus the controlling share of the company. A
decision was taken about Rs. 1200 crores. |t is being reviewed, | can say. It
is not a real advice. S0, the amount involved is Rs. 1436 crores, 25 per cent
shara, plus the management control of such a company, which is having a
profit of, probably, more than Rs. 2,000 crores. So, Bs. 1200 crores has
gone. What is the actual cost? Supposing, the Sub-Committee comes 10
the decision of Rs. 1200 crores, can we disinvest it? What is the exact
cost? What was the property? Has the property, which has been there,
been assessed? The Minister may be knowing better because some of the
major properties are located in Mumbai. | would like to know whether the
property itself cost more than Rs. 1200 to Rs. 1300 crores. What was the
cash which was handed over to this company? Qut of Rs. 4,700 crores, Rs.
4,000 crores were withdrawn. How much cash was given alongwith this
company? lIs it an international practice? Well, | am not aware of this
practice. Dr. Manmohan Singh is not here. Had he bsen here, he would
have given us some idea about it. Internationally, when you do this
acquisition or merger, is it with the cash surplus that the company is being
given for a management control and you are lIeaving the strategic
management? What is the policy? You may say it is the Minister of
Disinvestment or the Government as & whole. What is the policy of
disinvestment? What is the objective of disinvestment? Theé major objective
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of disinvestment is to see that the Government gets the money because the
Government cannot give resource, technology and management. It is for the
input. It was not for the output purposes. What is the purpose if the
Government reserves the peoples’ money, which is there, which has been
collected through years, and these reserves are handed over to them. i say
that it is a sample case. Sir, in the case of BALCQ, Rs. 400 crores reserves
were there. | do not know what has happened to that. | do not know what
happened to the assets of Modern Food. If this is a sample case, has the
Government done the same thing? So, what protection is there for assets
stripping? What is being done with these assets which have already been
handed over? The Ministry has to give a clear-cut reply as t0 how they have
checked up the assets stripping. What is the real cost? Sir, | am sureg, the
Minister will clarify what exactly is the commercial property which has gone
as a reserve surplus, and what precautionary measures are being taken right
now? Iif there is no protection in that clause of the shareholders agreement,
then such assets stripping would not be carried out for other assets also,
apart from the cash. Who will know about it? After one year, everyong will
forget. The company is no ionger under the Parliamentary control, and we
will not know about it. If assets are being stripped, what precautions are
there? Whao will know the position? After one year, everyone will forget
about it. The company is no longer under the control of Parliament. We
won't be knowing as to which assets have been stripped. What
precautions are there? Sir, so far as the company is concerned, the
decision has been taken. Does the Minister still feel that this is not a case
of asset stripping? | want to know whether any due diligence is being done
of the company where this money is being invested; if that is not being
done, why is it not being treated as an asset-stripping case; and why is it
not being treated as a case where rmala fide intentions are involved? | put
this question because there is no due diligencel How has the figure of
RS.1200 crores been arrived at? He had said all this at the Press
conference. He may tell us whether it is correct or wrong, but this is the
best description of what he had said.

Madam, | quote what the Minister had said at the Press
conference--it is from the Hindustan Times, dated 1% June:

"We did not sell the company for stripping of cash to prop up a
loss-making sister firm whose business prospects and profitability
are not known.”
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Forget about the due diligence. Will the Minister explain on what basis the
company was not being sold? He should come to Parliament and tell us--|
know he is not answerable to the Parliament, he is answerable to the
Government shareholders, i.e. the people of India--whether he has this
information; and whether he will substantiate the facts here that the
company in which the money is being invested is a sister firm, a loss-
making firm, whose business prospects and profitability are not known.
What type of company is this? He has the information. He has said all this
at the Press conference. Lel him tell the facts. | would like to have the
replies only from him.

Sir, 1 want to make a final point. Forget about the shareholders'
agreement.  Forget about everything. Forget about the disinvestment
cbjective. Has the disinvestment policy or the disinvestment process or this
dubious process changed the working of the Cabinet system? These are
fundamental questions. Sir, | want to put three or four queries, and | would
like the Chair, if necessary, to give a direction. Does the Cabinet system of
governance still hold good? His Ministry, the Ministry of Communications, is
the administrative Ministry for this company; he is accountable to the
Parliament and, through the Pariiament, to the Ministry, for the 26 per cent
equity, whatever the Government holds. He holds a Press-conference on
31" May, saying what | have just guoted above. On 4" June, another
Cabinet Minister, the Minister of Disinvestment, holds a Press conference.
There is nothing personal. He holds a Press conference and says, "VSNL
disinvestment totally transparent.” | am not talking about the allocation of
business. He had alsc said--I am quoting from the Hindu:

"But he was more than forthcoming in saying that the sharsholders’
agreement in the case of VSNL. disinvesiment exercise was 'tight
enough' not to warrant any renewal. He justified the position that
the investment decisions of the new VSNL management were
governed by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act. That
led to the board of management to take all such decisions."

"As far as the disinvestment process is congerned, we are satisfied,
and through the controversy we have been fortified.”
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"Through the disinvestment decision we have been fortified." Who has been
fortified--the Disinvestment Minister, the Cabinet, the Government of India or
the Minister of Communications? What exactly is happening? Who is
fortified? How that Press conference was held--on this company-- by
someaone else who is not accountable to Parliament for that? | would like to
know from the hon. Minister--he may say that he is not answerable because
the Minister of Disinvestment had said that--whether the Press conference
was authorised by the Government at any level, at his level or at the Prime
Minister's level, that on the issue of VSNL disinvestmants, it was he who
would be speaking at the Press conference. Was it an authorised Press
conference? Did Shri Pramod Mahajan authorise the Disinvestrnent Minister
to speak? [f he was not authorised, in what capacity did he talk about a
post-disinvestment company? It is still under the administrative control of
Shri Pramod Mahajan.

The last and the major point is: Whose property is this? At.the
same Press conference, the Disinvestment Minister said that he was
addressing the Press after receiving clearance from the Union Home
Minister,--Shri L.K. Advani was not the Deputy Prime Minister then--Shri L.K.
Advani, and the BJP President, Jana Krishnamurthy. | see some Press
reports where the Minister of Communications says, "It is my company”.
Why does he say ‘it is my company*? He is factually correct, to some
extent. It is his company. But it is not only his company, it is also our
company because we are supposed to be the custodians of the company.
It is a public company. It is a company of all. If you have said so, you say
s0.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: When | say, "it is my company”, it is
like an advocate saying “my company®. | don't own this particular
company. It is a company of the pecple of this country.

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: Absolutely. it is our company. It
is your company; it is my company; it is his company; it is a company of all.

THE WCE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI): You please
come to the point. :

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: It is a company whare we are all
shareholders, 1t is not a property of the BJP or the Sangh Parivar? What
does he mean by "he is authorised"?  Either he should say that this was
authorised--he had authorised the Disinvestment Minister to hoid this Press
conference--or he should say that this was not authorised. |If this was

237



RAJYA SABHA [1 August, 2002]

authorised by the party, the VSNL and all other public sector institutions
would become the property of the Sangh Parivar, and they would decids
who should hold the Press conference. | want a specific answer.

The last point is this. Please give an assurance {o the House. |
am apprehensive about one thing. | may not get a very large Press
coverage. But | am apprehensive. Here is a Government where some of
the Cabinet Ministers have dual capacity. They are both Cabinet Ministers
and journalists. They can publish anything. | want an assurance from the
Minister. | refer to an article by the Disinvestment Minister in The Indian
Express dated 7" July, 2002. '

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI): You please
put the questions.

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: The headline reads, “ITDC: Dirty
Linen, Right Royal Stink". ITDC is another Government company. Will you
please assure us thal tomorrow or the day-after-tomorrow, or after 5 or 6
days. there will not be such an article from another Cabinet Minister saying
"VSNL stinks”. | say, this Government stinks, if this is the way in which the
system of governance is being carried out. This Government stinks, if one
Mintster talks about some other Ministry, which is under the administrative
control of another Minister. Today, it is ITDC. Tomorrow, it could be VSNL.
| want an assurance from the Minister that whatever we discuss bhere,
whatever you say here or whatever we say here, will not be part of a
publication where it will be stated "VSNL stinks” or "the MPs stink®. | want
an assurance that such confidential information will not be passed on, in
this fashion, to the Press by the Government. Thank you.

SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN (Maharashtra): Sir, we have got this
statement from the Minister. What he has stated in his reply to this Calling
Attention Motion on a very important subject is very disappointing. First of
all, | would fike to focus my attention on three basic issues. The first issus
is the valuation of this company where VSNL is investing Rs.1,200 crores.
The second issue is the justification for selecting this company, and the
more basic issue, which has been raised by my colleague, is about the
different in the Government about the disinvestment process itself, whether
the valuation of VSNL was right. The third issue is about the role of the
Govarnment-nominated Directors in the meeting of the Board that was held
on 20" May.
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Sir, first, | come to the third point, the role of nominee Directors. |
have a clipping here which mentions about an interview by the
Communications Minister. The headline says, "TATAs committed breach of
trust: Mahajan". It was a headline in the Hindustan Times of 1* June. | am
not referring to what Shri Mahajan had said because that has already been
referred to by my colleague. | am referring 1o a box-item. The box item
quotes one of the nominee Director, Shri Bhave, as saying that the agenda
of the meeting came late. He says, "lt came only one day before the
meeting”. This statement is at variance with what the Minister has said.
The report in the Hindustan Times says, "The nominee Director, Shri Bhave,
had informed the VSNL on 17" May itself that he would not be able to
attend the Board meetling”. In your statement you say, “The Agenda and
the notice of the meeting were received on 21* May". There are some
variations in facts. | do not know who is telling the correct position,

It is very strange that the agenda which was received on 21" May
tatked of investment in an Indian company holding a Basic Service Operator
license. The statement says, “No¢ details about the targeted company were
given in the agenda item”. That rmeans on 21* May you did not know
which company it was; just a company having a Basic Service Operator
license. Interestingly, the Minister further says, "During the Board rmeeting,
a presentation was made by one Director {Operations) for giving justification
for making such  an inter-corporate investment -- in this meeting even the
name of the company was withheld from the Board -- without informing or
without mentioning the targeted company.” Does it not appear very strange
that Rs. 1200 crores have been invested in a corporate which is just holding
a Basic Service Operator license and the name of the corporate has been
withheld from the Board? The nominee Director does not object to it.
There are problems. Everybody realised that there were problems. When
did you realise? The statement says that -- we can infer from that --
whan the VSNL Board informed it to SEBI, only then the Government
came to know the name of the company. What sort of corporate
governance are you talking about? There are also reports that the Minister
is very unhappy with the role of the nominee Directors ang that they would
be sacked. What is their role, | do not know. One nominee Director is now
in the Sub-Committee which is going into the whole issue of investment.

I now come to the Terms of Reference. If you go through the
Terms of Reference, it ssems that the decision to invest in the Tata
Teleservices Ltd. had already been taken, All they are deciding now is,
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what is the valuation; what is the periodicity when the money should be
given; how to execute the shareholder license; what are the miestones and
how does the TTSL utilise the money., You had already decided that let the
VSNL invest in the TTSL which the Minister himself had said, was a loss-
making company. We have a basic problem. Is that the right decision?

| now come to the valuation part because valuation is one of the
Terms of Reference and the report of the Sub-Committee would be avaiiable
on the 15" August. You have not given us the balancesheet of the TTSL. 1
could locate the balancesheet of the TTSL. The balancesheet for 2000-01
is avaiable with me. We do not have the balance sheet for 2001-02.
Please inform the House about the status of the TTSL as on 31¥ March,
2002. What is the status of TTSL as on 31% March 20017 The total income
is Rs. 86 crores and the net loss for the year is Rs. 147 crores. The
company has an equity of Rs. 510 crores and the accumulated loss is Rs.
347 crores which makes the net worth Rs. 163 crores. To a company
which has a net worth of just Rs. 163 crores -- 25 per cent of that comes
1o Rs. 40 crores -- you have agreed to pay Rs. 1200 crore. Of course, | do
not have the March, 2002 figures. These are the figures up to March 2001.
From the statement it appears that you do not have any objection to
investing in  the TTSL, a loss-making company, as you yourself have said.
As on 31" March, 2001, their total loan is Rs. 490 crores. Now the debt-
equity ratio werks out to  3:0 per cent This money is going to be utilised
for improving the debt-equity ratio of this company., How is the valuation
arrived at? After your decision, that is, after the decision of VSNL to invest
in Tata Teleservices Limited, the Tatla Teleservices decided to buy another
basic service operator in Mumbai, that is, a company by name Hughes
Telecom. Hughes Telecom has an operating licence for Mumbai; it has a
very lucrative market. This company's share, which is a listed company,
was quoted at Rs.6.20, and the Tata Teleservices agreed to take over
Hughes Telecom at the rate of Rs.6.50 per share; and, you buy Tata
Teleservices at Rs.10 or Rs.11 per share! An argument has been given that
the Tata Teleservices Ltd. will make VSNL an integrated company, that they
will own some fixed line of assets. Sir, Tata Teleservices Ltd. has only
Rs.1-11/2 lakhs worth of assets in Andhra Pradesh; nothing more. But if
you compare it with Bharathi, what is the valuation? The implied valuation
of Tata Teleservices Ltd., a loss-making company, works cut to Rs.4,800
crorg; | gave the figures of performance. You have valued it equal to VSNL
itself, because VSNL's valuation is about Rs.5,000 crores, and you have put
your own valuation at Rs.1,369 crores; 25 per cent share was given. Tata
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Teleservices Ltd.'s valuation is equal to that of VSNL. And, the Tata
Teleservices' valuation is also equal to that of Bharati Telecom, which has
more than 1 milion lines. This is the valuation. Whichever way you look at
it, it is a highway robbery. | do know; socmething is happening here. Meryll
Lynch, one of the famous investment companies, has said that VSNL's
investment in Tata Teleservices Ltd. is premium-based. The implied
valuation is same as that of Bharathi, which is a8 much bigger company.
Sir, the valuation agreed to by the Board is ridiculously high, and the
officials of the DOT said, -- this has appeared in the newspapers -- that
they feared that Rs.1200 crores could be diverted to a Special Purpose
Vehicle, We did not know what that Special Purpose Vehicle was; but,
today, you have told us that that Special Purpose Vehicle is a company
called Panatone, which has besn agreed to by VSNL. This Special Purpose
Vehicla was created with money from Tata Sons, Tata Power, TISCO and
others. A lot of loans were taken. Now these loans are sought to be
repaid by this devious route; Rs.1200 crores are to be given to Tata's sister
companies. Now, what happens to the equity? How is it going to be paid?
Is this money going to be used to pay back the lpans that you have taken
to acquire VSNL, in the first place? What sort of circuitous operation is
going on? Further, there is also an issue about evaluation of VSNL itself,
even though the Informtion Technology Minister would say, "This is not my
problem; this is the problem of the Disinvestment Minister.,” But what are
we doing? The VSNL's balancesheet as of 31% March, 2001, tells us that
they had a free reserve of Rs.6,300 crores. You took some dividends and
took some assets away. Still, on the day when you decided to disinvest,
there were at least Rs.1,500 crores worth of free reserves; or, at least,
Rs.1,200 crores worth of free reserves were there, and you did not think of
taking this away. Why? The Disinvestment Secretary, Mr. Baijal, says that
thera are over Rs. 2,200 crores worth of assets, which you have purposely
left to VSNL, undervalued the properties and assets because of its size.
Suddenly, you do not mind investing Rs.1,200 crores of VSNL, now, the size
does not matterl In the vajuation of VSNL, the raserve price was kept at
Rs.1,218 crores. When the free reserves could have been taken away by
the new owner easily, as they have done now, the fres reserves of Rs.1,500
crores was left in the company, and the minimum reserve price was fixed at
Rs.1,218 crores. Very strange!l Now, they have also taken in Immersat. |
do not know how much you will recover. Also, there is a surplus land of
733 acres with the VSNL. What are you going to do with that? Separate
companies are sought to be formed. Permissions are being taken. Why
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was this separate company not formed before disinvestment? This is all
very, very opague, not transparent at all. Sir, before | put my queries to the
hon. Minister, | just ask the Minister: What is the way you are running the
PSUs? Now, take MTNL, a PSU under the Ministry of Communications.
You have arm-twisted MTNL to invest Rs.250 crores in the Maharashtra
Irrigation Corporation.  You have arm-twisted them to invest Rs.100 crores
in iTI. Is that the best possible investment of the surplus money that is
lying with the MTNL? Of course, we are not dealing with MTNL. So, let us
take VSNL. You are now justifying that VSNL needs to have its own
subscriber base, with fixed line operators, and, therefore, you say, you are
promoting its integration into various services. But, Sir, | would like to point
out to the hon. Minister that when the VSNL, before disinvestment,
approached the Minister asking for permission for diversification, getting into
basic services, applying for the fourth cellular licence, he refused; he did not
allow them. He did not allow them the fourth celiular licence, but, you are
justifying that they need to have some basic services because, without that,
they cannot run.

Talking about decision-making in the Ministry of Communications,
VSNL and MTNL were not allowed to bid for international long distance and
national long distance. You are now talking about diversifying and
integrating. But you yourself are not permitting your own companies to
diversify and integrate. Also, VSNL are not allowed to change their long
distance career for the next two years. They will not be allowed to take
advantage of the competition. | charge this Government that it is purposely
framing policies, which are undervaluing the public sector, which are making
the public sector units lose their value, so that they can be picked up at low
costs. My specific question is this. Will the Government force the VSNL
management to reverse its decision to invest Rs.1200 crores in TTSL?
Secondly, will the Government redefine the role, responsibility and
accountability of Government nominee-directors? What are you going to do
about the directors who were present at the meeting on the 25™? Wil the
Government consider changes in the Companies Act to make it compuisory
to ratify inter-corporate investment in inter-connected companies, the
decision to be ratified by a special resolution of the shareholders? Will the
VSNL, with 43 millions subscribers, be allowed 1o enter the national fong-
distance area, if you really want to integrate and make it bigger? Wil the
VSNL be permitted to tie up with BSNL and MTNL rather than going to
private companies?
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SHRI PRAMOD MAMAJAN: Can you repeat the last one, please?

SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN: Wil the VSNL be allowed to tie up
with BSNL and MTNL so that there is synergy between the Government
companies? Sir, | wish that the Sub-Committee they have appointed looked
into the basic issue of investing VSNL's money in Tata Tele Services Ltd., a
sister company which, we all know, is a loss-making company. We are
afraid that there is some kind of a circuitous mechanism where the money
that the new owners of VSNL invested, borrowed by VSNL is being
channeled back so that the entire investment, the entire deal, is totally free.
This is a very sericus matter. | also request the Minister to table a white
paper on this whole matter, giving the balancesheets of VSNL and Tata Tele
Services Ltd., and informing us whether other options wers considered or
not. How is it that in the Board meeting, the name of the company was
not even mentioned? Al these matters should be brought before the
Parliament, in the form of a white paper.

SHRI R. 8. GAVAI (Maharashtra) Sir, | have got limited questions,
The statement made by the hon. Minister indicates that the Government has
disinvested 25% of Government equity in Videsh Sanchar Nigam Ltd. to a
Strategic Partner, M/s Panatone Finvest Limited. This appears in the first
paragraph of the statement, In the last paragraph of the staternent, the
Minister says, "Through active participation by the nominated Government
Director in the Committee and both the Government Directors on the Board,
Government will make ali efforts to protect its 26 per cent equity intarest in
the Company." By reading the first and the last paragraphs of the statement
of the Minister, one can come to the conclusion that the Government
remained deeply divided on this very issue. Sir, as per Press reports,
unfortunately, the two Cabinet Ministers, namely, Mr. Pramod Mahajan and
Mr. Arun Shourie, are supposed to be divided on this issus.

SHRI SWARAJ KAUSHAL (Haryana): The House is not divided.

SHRI R.S. GAVAI: This thing has been reflected in the statement
also. Shri Arun Shourie had categorically said that whatever he did was
ethical and moral, and it was transparent. In the same fashicon, Shri Pramod
Mahajan also said -- of course, | don't take his version literally -- but, in
protecting the interests of VSNL -- that he will see to it that the share is
reached up to 26 per cent. It is not yet finalised. | want to know from the
hon. Minister what is the current position of the agreement, whether it is 25
per cent or 26 per cent. If at all there is any controversy, why is it there?
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Both the Ministers are very good friends; so, there should not be any
controvarsy between them. If you are hopeful of 28 per cent, then what is
the modus operandi for that? This is my first question.

Sir, my second question is that. The National Herald of 25" June
mentions about 'good economics', | quote, ‘It is good economics, of
course, for the Tatas to pay Rs.1,145 crore to gain control over Videsh
Sanchar Nigam Limited (VSNL) and, then, withdraw Rs.1,200 crore from its
reserves to invest in their group company, Tata Teleservices (TTL). But, how
is that good economics, from the Government's point of view?" In my view,
it is not geod economics for the Government. It is good economics only for
the Tatas. | want 1o repeat the query raised by Shri Chavan. The National
Herald further says, "The Ministry failed to notice that VSNL had bank
balances of over Rs.1,200 crore, which the buyers could fully utilise unless
the agreemant between the Government and the Tatas had some provisions
to block that. And if they did not want to block that, why didn't it strike
them to..." The hon. Minister is very, very keen to safeguard the interests of
the VSNL, while the Minister of Disinvestment is rather indifierent to him. So,
these are the two clarifications which | want to seek from the hon. Minister.
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SHRI P. FRABHAKAR REDDY (Andhra Pradesh): Mr. . Vice-
Chairman, Sir, | thank you for giving me this opportunity to speak and
express my views on a very important issue like this. Today in this House
we are discussing the issue of the VSNL's decision to invest in Tata Tele
Services, Sir, before we go into the question whether it is a legal or moral
or ethical decision or whether it i3 a profitable decision for the company or
its sharsholders, | would like to go into the background of the disinvestment
policy of the Governrment. Sir, | am slightly striking a different note from the
speakers who spoke before me. They have all criticised the decision of the
Tatas and VSNL to invest in the Tata Tele Services. Sir, the Government of
india, for some time now, is very actively pursuing the policy of
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disinvestment. According 10 ma, the chief reason for disinvestment is that
the Government feels that its valuable assets are blocked .and they are not
yielding sufficient dividends and most of the PSUs are not being run
efficiently. Sir, of course, the most important reason is that the
Government wants to bridge the gap and reducs the fiscal deficit. Sir, with
these objectives, the Government has taken up disinvestment. Therefore,
my Submission is that this discussion on this subject should proceed
keeping this background in mind. Sir, in this process of disinvestment, the
VSNL was also disinvested and they found a strategic investor in Tatas.
The Tatas acquired 49 per cent of the shares and the Government has
retained 26 per cent of shares. Sir, in my opinicn, why the Government has
retained these 26 per cent shares is that if they put every thing on sale, they
feared that proper investors might not come forward and the other reason
or praesumption is that if it goes into private hands or private companies,
they can perform better, they can get proper valuation and at a later date if
the value of shares goes up, the Government can disinvest. Normally, that
is the presumption. | may be right or | may be wrong. [t is very difficult to
understand how the Government can think of disinvestment and at the
same time have control over the company. Sir, it is like having the cake
and sating it tco. Sir, after it has divested its shares, all strategic decisions
have to be left to Board of the new company. Sir, if this is not dons, it will
fatally affact the disinvestment pcolicy of the Government. If the Government
wants to play an active role even after disinvestment, any invester would
shudder to come forward. Sir, | have reasons and | am expressing my
opinion.  Sir, having expressed my views on this, | should also say
something about this investment decision. Sir, the Tatas' decision to
integrate the VSNL with other Tata company is not something new. Sir,
immediately after signing the agreement, the Tatas had announced that
within a few wesks a decision would be taken to integrate. They have given
a statement to that effect. Sir, | feel that the integration and diversification
plan of the company is a right decision. Sir, the VSNL's monopoly in
international long distances has ended. Sir, it does not have access of its
own to the domestic subscribers. Sir, 80 per cent of its calls are being
routed through the MTNL and the VSNL. Sir, both these companies, after
the monopoly of the VSNL has ended, are trying.toc enter the ILD service.
In that case, is it not logical for the VSNL to set up some company which is
having a domestic basa? This is the question. Sir, it is not now, but even
before the VSNL was divested. The former Chairman had requested the
Government that VSNL be permitted to enter domestic service and cellular
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phones. But that was rejected on the ground that ‘aiready the V3NL, the
MTNL and other Government companies were there in the business.
Therefore, third parties do not come and be a competitor to the MTNL and
the VSNL.' Now, the VSNL is no more a Government company. It has
been divested and the TATAs have taken it over. Now, is it not proper for
the VSNL to search and think of some domestic partner when other
competitors are entering into the ILD services? In the light of this, | feel, it
is a right decision.

Another point t would like to make is that the MTNL is planning to
have a tie-up with Bharti and Data Access for ILD services. So, when other
Government company can have a tie-up with a private company, what is
wrong with VSNL having a tie-up with TATA Teleservices?...(Time-belf)...|
would only like to add one more point and conclude.

Sir, there is also a point regarding its reserves.. The reserves of a
company are meant for investment. They are not meant to keep them in
cold storage or to deposit them in banks. The raserves of a company have
to be invested. Before VSNL is divested, it had declared a dividend of
Rs. 11,000 crores to the Government. Is il not a better thing to invest this
monay in some business activity rather paying dividend? This is what |
would like to know from the hon. Minister. After the VSNL lost its monopoly
in the international long-distance call services, it has to withstand the
competition and it has to integrate with the companies which have a large
customer base. If that is a prudent move, then TATA's cannot have a tie-
up with some other companies which are their competitors. In the light of
this, ! fully support the decision of the Government.

Finally, | would like to say that, aftar the PSUs disinvestment, the
Government's interference should not be there. If there is anything wrong,
at best, it should be left to the Board of Directors and its shareholders. Let
the Company Law Board and other monitoring agencies take carg of the
problems that arise in & company. I the Government's dominance is
continued even after disinvestment, it will badly affect the disinvestment
plans and it will send wrong signals to the prospective investors in the
country and abroad. Thank you.

SHR! V.V. BRAGHAVAN (Kerafa): Thank you, Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir.
The VSNL's case makes a mockery of the disinvestment process. These
are not my words. These are the words of Mr. Pramod Mahajan. | am
quoting from Hindustan Times of 5™ June, 2002. If it is a mockery and if
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you truly realise that it is a mockery, how can you end up with this
statement? We shall have 1o protect...

SHRI JANARDHANA POOJARY (Karnataka): This statement came
from the heart of the Minister. But, after that, there is some pressure and
the time was very short.

SHRI V.V. RAGHAVAN: You have now ended up by saying that we
shall have to make all efforts to protect the 26 per cent equity of the
Government. It is not an issue of 26 per cent equity. The VSNL has
reserve fund. As far as my information goes, the reserves are to the tune of
Rs. 7,000 crores. H it is not Rs. 7,000 crores, it is Rs. 4,000 crores, The
corporate sector wants to loot this huge amount. Whose amount is this?
This amount belongs to the people of india. This is our asset. How can
you give a freehand 10 the corporate sector to loot this huge amount? That
is the question. | was wondering when Mr. Prabhakar Reddy supported this
move of the Government. That is why you have said that it is a
mockery...(nterruptions)...| am not surprised because of Mr. Pramod
Mahajan's climb down. Already, the former Communication Minister,
Shri Jagmohan, had burnt his fingers when he was confronted with the
corporate sactor. In 1989, when the telecom services were privatised, the
corporate sector entered into an agreement with the Department of
Telecommunications saying that they would give licence fee to the
Government and it was fixed. The agresment had been signed. The bank
guarantea had been given. But at the end of the year, they did not pay the
amount. The dues amounted to Rs. 4,000 crores. Mr. Jagmohan insisted
that they must pay the amount. They had agreed to that, and they had
given the bank guarantee also. There was no reason to evade from paying.
He sticked to that point. Unfortunately, Mr. Jagmohan had to quit the
Communication Ministry. The corporate sector did not want him. This is
the way, they are disinvesting the assets of our country, our own asssts!
Will you be pleased to publish a White Paper on what is going on in the
Department of Telecommunications? What has happened? How are you
going to end the loot of our own money by the comorate seclor? | was
surprised when Mr. Prabhakar Reddy said that the Directors Board of the
TATAs has every right to loot.  Sorry, they have no right at all
....Unterruptions)... | know the TDP people. They are not so in favour of
this loot by the corporate sector. So, this is a very crucial issue. Please
stick to your original stand. Stick to the interest of the nation, interest of
the public sector. All this mockery of disinvestment should be fought out.
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You are a young Minister. You have the courage. Piease fight it out. We
are with you. Please publish a White Paper in this regard. Thank you.

SHRI PREM CHAND GUPTA (Bihar}: Sir, from the very beginning,
we have been objecting to the methodology of disinvestment process. We
have always been opposing the Government's intention of selling profit-
making companies, and retaining sick companies with them. When a
company is healthy, profit-making, and is having a very important
infrastructural base, what is the use of disinvesting that company? One
could think of disinvesting those companies which are related 1o service
industry. - But companies like this, where the infrastructure is involved,
should not have been sold. It is not the question of which company was
sold, and which was not sold, but the basic disinvestment policy is wrong.
A target of Rs. 10,000 crores was fixed. The buyer knows that Government
has 1o raise this money, and that is why a material of Rs. 100 is being sold
for Rs. 10 only. This is what is happening, whether it is BALCO or NALCO,
which is in pipeline, now. One of the best-managed companies in aluminium
would now be disinvested. And, that could be for a song.

Sir, the point is, the basic methodology adopted so far for
disinvesting of companies is absolutely disastrous. The jewels that we have
built over the last 55 years are being sold for & song. The hon. Minister -- |
know he would say that he is not Disinvestmant Minister -- should have
objected to the disinvestment of the VSNL because this is the company
which would connect this country with the whole world. But the way it has
been liquidated -- | fear it would go down in the history as a bad precedent
on the part of the Government.

SHR! SWARAJ KAUSHAL (Haryana): Sir, | want to put a few basic
questions to the hon. Minister of Communications, My first question is this.
When the Company had Rs. 1,400 crores of reserve fund and when it had
Rs. 4000 crores worth of assets, why was it sold for Rs. 1,436 crores?

Sir, my second question is this. [f the Company could invest
Rs. 1200 crores in one of its group companies, then, why was this money
not, somehow, passed on to the Govermment and sold for the balance
amount? The fact is that you have sold this company, which could invest
Rs. 1,200 crores, barely for Rs. 1,400 crores. So, what is the net gain to
the country and to the people of India?

Sir, my third question is a litte controversial, | have some interast
in the security situation of the North-East. It is an admitted fact that some
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group was accused of assisting the ULFA. | don't know what happened to
those cases which were being investigated. Are the public sector
undertakings meant to be handed over to those companies which are
accused of assisting the subversive activities against the country? If the
Hindujas are disqualified for some reason, if the Videocon is disqualified for
some reason, the Government must answer this one aspect of the question
as to what happened to the cases of that group which was assisting the
ULFA in the North-East. How is such a company, such a group, eligible to
take over a public sector undertaking? Thank you, Sir.

THE VICE CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI ): Now, Mr.
Minister. (interruptions)

SHRI JBON ROY (West Bengal): Sir, if you permit me, | will make
some two or three points.

THE WCE CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI: Let the
Minister reply; if you don't find answers to your questions, then, you can put
your question after the reply. {nterruptions)

SHRI JIBON ROY: Sir, | will take two or three minutes only. Sir,
the first point is: When the TATA was owning only 25 per cent of the share,
why was a hundred per cent management transferred to the company? Sir,
my second point is this. The Disinvestment Ministry had circulated a
document calfed ‘Understanding the Strategic Saie Agreements'. In that
document it is mentioned that in every document there should a clause
against stripping of assets. Then it is mentioned, 'if such a stripping takes
ptace, in that case, the Agreement will stand cancelled." | am reading a
clause in the document. | guote: 'Therefore, a clause on affirmative rights
of Government in case of sale etc. of assets after takeover should-exist.,' It
further states: 'This right would typically terminate with the termination of the
Agreement.' As stripping of assets has taken place, | want to know whether
the Sale Agreement will be terminated or not? if it is to be terminated, who
will do it? Will it be the Disinvestment Ministry or your Ministry? -

Sir, | wrote a letter to the hon. Prime Minister. In response to that
letter, Mr. Arun Shourie had written that the responsibility lies with your
Ministry. He said this in his letter and | guote: "Matlers arising after
disinvestment in a public sector undertaking in which Government has
disinvested its equity stake in favour of the Strategic Partner, are dealt with
by the Administrative Ministry, in this case, the Department of
Telecommunications. The role of the Ministry of Disinvestment effectively
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ceases once the transaction documents are executed between the
Government and the GStrategic Partner along with receipt of sale
consideration and transfer of management control to the SP." Here the
assets have been stripped; stripped illegally. So, | would like to know
whether the Agreement will be terminated or not and who will terminate the
Agreement. According to the letter, the Agreement has to be terminated by
your Ministry.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, | am grateful to
the hon. Members who have participated in the discussion. Though | have
been in this House for the last 16 years, this is the first Calling Attention
Notice concerning my Ministry. Normally, Calling Attention Notice is given on
a subject matter of urgent public importance, As | said in the beginning, |
will try my level best to answer all the guestions that have been put. But iet
me point out to the hon. Members that, technically, the present Calling
Attention relates to the issues arising out of the decision of the VSNL Board
to invest Rs.1200 crores in TATA Tele Services Ltd. It is not about the
whole disinvestiment process. Under the Business Rules, if the Notice had
been on the very need of the VSNL disinvestment, then, it would have been
sent to the Ministry of Disinvestment and not to the Ministry of
Communications. Befors disinvestment, it is the Ministry of Disinvestment
which looks after the disinvestment of PSUs. But once a PSU is
disinvested, it is the Administrative Ministry, as Shri Jibon Roy pointed out,
which is responsible for further action. Therefore, | am responsible for the
post-disinvestment actions only, but because of the principle of collective
responsibility, and the curiosity of the hon. Members, | will try my level best
to answer even those questions which are not directly related to this Calling
Attention. At the outset, let me say that [ support the disinvestment of the
VSNL, in letter and spirit. | was not opposed to it earlier, and | am not
opposed to it even now. Not only | supported it in the Cabinet, but,
principally, also | believe in disinvestment process. Disinvestment of the
VSNL was a totally transparent process. As far as the Government and its
allies are concerned, there is no difference of opinion on its disinvestment,
Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, many issues have been raised. My dear friend,
Shri Prem Chand Gupta, said that we are selling only profit-making units.
Sir, | respectfully submit that it is not correct. Subject to correction by my
colleague and the Minister of Disinvestment, 75 per cent of the PSUs which
have been disinvested, till today, were sick PSUs. So, it is not true that only
profit-making units are being disinvested. If you want tc have my personal
opinion, | would say that it is the only profit-making units which should be
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2.00 p.m.

disinvested first. Who will purchase the loss-making units? When the
people don't have money to purchase even profit-making units, who is
going to purchase the loss-making units, But as | said earlier, the truth is
that the 75 per cent of the PSUs which have been disinvasted, till today,
were not profit-making units. So, it is not true that we are selling only
profit-making units. 1t is not the principle of disinvestment, whether a unit is
a profit-making unit or a loss-making unit. Rather, the principle is, whether
the Govarnment should be there in a particular business or not. Iif we think
that the Government has to be involved in a particular business, even
though it is a great loss-making business, the Government has to be there.
Let us take Defence. If we think that the Government should be there in
the Defence production, then, even if it is a loss-making concern, the
Government cught to be there. But if it is just a paan, beedi selling
company, -- though after the ban on gutka, it is no longer a profit-making
company -- and making profits, the Government has no business to sell
paan and beedi. So, the decision of disinvestment should be based on
where the Government should be and where the Government should not be,
and not on whether it is a profit-making company or a loss-making
company. But, anyhow, as { have said, as far as the general cbservation is
concemned, the loss-making companies are more, as far as the today's list
is concerned. Sir, | do not know about the future.

Then, | come to the VSNL. Sir, two questions were raised about
the VSNL. One was raised about the land. Let me make it clear as to what
we had decided for land before disinvestment. Sir, the VSNL has a land of
1230.38 acres. This is the land which was available with the VSNL, out of
which 773.13 acres of land was declared surplus. !t was not included in the
deal which was signed with the strategic partner. The Company Secretaries
of the MTNL, the TCIL, the VSNL, which are basically our tslecom
companies, are sitting fogether to form a separate company to see as to
how 773 acres of land should be used for the Government purpose. So, it
is not true that the surplus land has been given to the VSNL. At the same
time, let me point out one more thing that if we sell any of the fand or even
if the VSNL sells its own land, then the TATAs can ask for its 25 per cent
share of that sale, but the Agreement says that as far as saie of land is
concerned, the strategic partner will have no role in it, either in the sale of
it, or, in taking profit out of it. So, as far as the land is concerned, ! think,
we have taken enough precaution to see that this surplus land is not used
by the strategic partner, because, in Delhi also, we must be having
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hundreds of acres of land. It was very difficult at that point of time to
decide the value- of land. And, we were selling a telecom company; we
were not selling land to a builder. So, it was a telecom company which
was purchasing that land, Now, if we were deciding the sale of about 1000
acres of land in mid-Delhi or in mid-Mumbai, then it wiii be worth Rs. 5000
or Rs. 10,000 or Rs. 20,000 crores. And, who will come to purchase this
company for the land? So, we just soid the telecom company, and as far
as the land is concerned, we have taken enough precaution. The second
thing that | would like to mention is that before selling the VSNL, getting the
financial bids, we took enough care to see that it retains the minimum
ameount which is needed for the VSNL. So, we were cautious about it and
if you analyse the whole situation, Sir, when the disinvestment process
started in 2000-01 and lastly in 2002, we had declared a dividend to the
extent of 500 per cent in 2002, and a dividend of 750 per cent in 2001-02.
Sir, declaring a dividend of 750 per cent is a record in Guinness Book of
World Record. And. Sir, no company, anywhere in the world, has declared
a dividend which gces to the extent of 750 per cent. So, it was not true
that we left cash with the VSNL to play with it. Yes; the VSNL was having
about Rs. 1500 crores. At that point of time, for the obvious reasons, it
was left. Becausa, Sir, the VBNL has ADR, GDR issuss, and, for that,
about Rs. 800 crores were left with them. They were to pay to MTNL and
the BSNL. about Rs. 200 crores. We cannot pay it directly. Therefore, we
kept it with them, and, at a later stage, we got this Rs. 200 crores. At the
same time, thay were having & basic service licence, and, for that, also,
they needed about Rs. 300-400 crores. So, the left over of Rs. 1400-1500
crores was the minimurn amount, which anybody has to leave with a
company, if you are disinvesting it. So, it was not kept as a cash rich
company. As far as TATA is concermned, we somelimes feel that it has
purchased this company at Rs.1400 crores or Rs.1500 crores, Actually it is
not true. It has purchased this company, roughly at Rs.600 crores, becauss
it has purchased 25 per cent shares from for at about Rs.1400 crores. | am
just giving rough figures so that | do not take much time of the House.
They had gone to the market with just 20 per cent of the shares. Now,
theyare having 45 per cent shares. So, when they go to the market and
purchase 20-25 per cent shares at Rs.202 per share, we must apprecaite
that they have also paid about Rs.7000 odd crore to the share-holders.
They have also paid to us about Rs.1400 crores. So, to get control of the
new VSNL, they have paid about Rs.2,500 crores. Therefore, it is not true
that they have paid less than that.
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One or two more questions were asked by some hon. Members.
Shri Prithviraj Chavan also asked a question. One of the leading business
papers has generated so much controversy about it by writing articles for
and against the issue. One of its editorials crticised me. The same
question was put by Shri Prithviraj Chavan. Sir, | say that | speak here as
the Communications Minister, don't think that it is a reflection of the ego. it
was said that | did not give basic service licence 10 VSNL. Mr. Prabhakar
Reddy also raised this question. Sir, | very respectfully submit that it is a
very simple thing to understand. In telecom, VSNL is an international long-
distance service provider. Before disinvestment, VSNL was my own
company. When | say 'my own', | include all of you in it. At that point of
time, the BSNL was a corporation. It was giving the land line service to the
entire country, except to Delhi and Mumbai. MTNL was limited to Delhi and
Mumbai. it was an artificial bifurcation of the old DoT, carved out for two
cities.  One was MTNL; and BSNL, for the rest of the country. Sir, if you
are an owner of VSNL, MTNL and BSNL, you are owning the basic service
hcence. And when you are owning an international long-distance licence in
another company, would you like your own companies {0 compete with
each other? If you do so, it would be absurd. How could | allow VSNL to
do so, before disinvesting? | gave them the international long-distance
licence, because they were no more my company. Sog, they can do
whatever they want to do, after they are disinvested. Suppose | allow the
MTNL to start a service in Saharanpur, and BSNL to start a service in
Mumbai, the pecple would say, the Government has gone mad. They are
the owner of both the companies. We are running two hoteis in the same
lane, Where will the people go? 5o, it would be totally absurd to suggest
that we should have given a licence to VENL. At present, as far as MTNL
and BSNL are concerned, we are not going to give them an international
licence in a hurry only for the basic reascn that the share-holders agreement
says that all international traffic has to be passed through VSNL, So, as
long as it is binding on me, | cannot spend any money on MTNL and BSNL,
as nobody in the world would like his own companies to fight against each
other, in the same industry. That was the basic reason why we did not give
it to VSNL. As far as VSNL 1s concerned, finally, when it is disinvested,
they have a basic service, let them do whatever they want to do. But, at
one point of time, if BSNL and MTNL start digging the road, and if
everybody goes anywheare in the country, | do not know how | could have
done 1t.
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SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN: By this argument, you should have
only one bank, not a number of banks operating in the same city.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: | agree with you, but these are not
identical issues. VSNL was specially created by us to serve in the
international long-distance area. By name itself, which, | think you people
gave it, overseas communication services - it was with the Sanchar Nigam.
So, if the Videsh Sanchar Nigam starts doing business, what happens?
That is why | would like everything to be disinvested. Then, let them do
whatever they want to do, either go in each other's sector or do not go in
each other's sector. This was the basic question | tried to answer to the
best of my capacity.

Now, | will come to the questions, which are put up baswcally about
the Tata Teleservices investment. Before | answer the questions raised by
other Members, | would like to start with Mr. Prabhakar Reddy. Let me say
it categorically that we do not want to interfere in the disinvested company.
No. 1 do not want to interfere. But, at the same time, one must understand
that, as rightly put by Mr. Dipankar Mukherjee, we the people of this country
hold 26 per cent shareholding in this VSNL. Why did the Government
decide to keep 26 per cent, it we do not have a job? f we do not have to
do anything, then, we should have sold the whole thing. Let them do
whatever they want to do. Bul when Government took the decision to keep
26 per cent of equity--it is 26 per cent and not 24 per cent--and when we
have a Director, we have a special resolution power--we thought that at
least in the future one may disinvest this 26 per cent also--one can say, in
the short run, we have a role. Otherwise, there was no guestion of keeping
26 per cent with us. We do not want to interfere in the day-to-day
management of the VSNL. | do not want to write to them as the Minister.
No. We would definitely work but only through Government Directors. And
that is why in one Press Conference, | have said, "In the disinvestment
process, if the private sector behaves badly, they will get good Directors.”
Then, the Government will have to see that they send Directors who are
mare competent than the private people sitting there. So, as long as we
hold on behalf of the Rashtrapatiji or the pecple of the country, we have a
role and so, we cannot say that this role should be diminished.

Secondly, now, whatever information | am going to give has come
through Directors. | was not there perscnally present. One question was put
about Bhave's appointment. Mr. Prithviraj Chavan put it. Let me clarify
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about it. Sir, the chronology about Mr. Bhave is this. We appointed
Mr. Yashwant Bhave as the Director at a later stage. So, he got the
information by the circular resolution of 16" May that he had been inducted
into the Board. The Board meeting was fixed on 28" May. This circular
resolution was only to inform him that he was appointed as a Dirsctor and
the Board meeting was on 28", Beyond that, it cannot be technically evan
treated as a notice; it cannot be treated as a business. There is no
question of any business item. He was going to the USA. We had a
Software Technology Park at San Jose. It was a loss-making unit and we
finally decided to close it down. We had asked him to go there to look
after the closing down process there. So, he informed on 17" May, in
writing, that he would not be able to attend. He left on 20" May, 2002 to
the U.S. The agenda item was received by his office on 27" May. It was
despatched by the VSNL on 24™ or 25™. This is one of the objections,
which we took with the VSNL. We said, “You dre talking about an
investment to the tune of Rs.1200 crores. Forget about public and private
sectors. Even in a private sector, even if all the companies are part of
private sector, Rs.1,200 crores investment from A company to B company
cannot come avernight. So, naturally, whatever information | have given, is
very correct, and | have not erred on dates mentioned by me,

Now, | will come to the Tata Tele Services Ltd. | do not want to
repeat what | have alrsady mentioned in my written statement. There was a
Board mesting. The agenda was almost like a public agenda. It did not
mention about the Tata Tele Services. It only mentioned about an
investment of Rs. 1,200 crores in-a basic service operator company. Now,
one of the directors could not go. The second director went there, When
the second director went there, he objected to it. Neither he was the
Chairman nor this thing came to us. He was one of the directors. The next
day, he came to Delhi. You see, Tata is a generic name, and technically,
they have another name. But, for the sake of convenience, we must use this
name. When they informed the Mumbai Stock Exchange and when it was
published in the newspapers, then only the Government nominee came to
know that they have informed the Stock Exchange, and then, the so-called
controversy has started. | have given all the dates when the Government
nominee has objected, on which date he has written letters, on which date
the DoT wrote a letter. At this point of time, let me make one thing clear. If
at one time or the other VSNL has money, it has to make an investment in
a telecom company. It cannot make an investment in a hotel company. So,
there is a logic behind it. But, when | say it is a breach of trust, | am not
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withdrawing my statement--1 mean, what | have said in the press
conference. Source is something different, which | do not know. But,
whatever has come in my name, | am not withdrawing that. | still feel that
Tata should have waited for some time. You take over a company on 13" of
February, and on 27" of February, you decide to invest Rs. 1,200 crores. Let
me make one thing very clear. This Rs. 1200 crores was not to be given in
one go. It was to be given in four or five years' time. | should not do
injustice to them because they are not present here. Secondly, till today, not
a penny has been given. It is not as if money has already gone. There is
nothing of that kind. There is a Board's decision only which has been
amended to a certain extent. But, stil | feel that when we talk about
disinvestment, forget about the debate that we have and the faith we have.
| fee! that the private sector has also a role to play to make this
disinvestment process a success. One can call it as their vasted interests in
making it a success. So, if you are taking over some company on
13" February, and just within thres, four months, you are taking a decision--
not for the payment of that amount, because that much money was not
available with the VSNL at that point of time, to hand over a cheque of
Rs. 1200 crores to the Tata Tele Services-- on some other count. | think,
this was what | have said. This will not help the disinvestment process, and
| still stand by it. But, at the same time, let me make it crystal clear that |
do not expect VSNL to go beyond a telecom company, and | do not expect
VSNL to invest in BSNL. Anyhow, you cannot invest in the BSNL, because
we are a corporation. So, there is no question of investing in it. Do you
expect that the VSNL, which is 45 per cent Tata company, will invest in
Sunil Mittal's company or Reliance company? | think, it will be absurd for
me to think that the Tata company will invest in the Reliance company, and
the Reliance Company will invest in the Bharti company and the Bharti
company will invest in the Government company, This will not happen. So,
it is vary natural that the new VSNL, which is 45 per cent owned by Tata, if
at all, they want to invest some money of this company in a telecom
company, they will go to a sister company. The Government's first objection
was about the timing. The Governrment's second objection was this. What
kind of evaluation was done by us? How had wa, at one go, decided such
a huge amount to be invested, without a proper valuation? So, we insisted,
"Please have a different committee. Value it properly, and prove that the
Tata Tele Services Ltd. is really wonth considering.” | would like to say one
thing as far as the decision about the Tata Tele Services is concerned. |If
you look at part (f}, the mandate to the committee is also to identify and
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quantify any additional investment opportunities which are more attractive,
and submit the same to the Board for its consideration. So, it is not the
Tata Tele Services alone. Sir, at this juncture, | think, we in the Govarnment
have nothing against the TATAs, running as a house or as a company. The
only thing was that we, being a 26 per cent partner, thought it proper that il
would be wrong to disinvest in such asway. So, we said, "Value, the Tata
Tele Services. Go through a proper process.” As you have rightly said, if
the TATAs can purchase Hutch for Rs.5/-, how can they sell the same
company? Now, they are acquiring it for Maharashtra. If they go up in
valuation, you have to calculate the value by all methods. Sir, the situation
rests at this juncture. There is a committea. A Government nominee is
there, and that nominee will take care of 26 per cent shares that the
interests of the Government are protected. Let us wait for the decision
which the Board takes. ..{nterruptions)... Sir, the first thing is, it is not my
job to decide whether the Tata Tele Services is a viable company or not. |
am not an expert. ...Untarruptions)...

SHAI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: This is what you have stated.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: | am not an expert; that is why | am a
Minister. ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: This is what you have stated.
...(interruptions)... My first question was, whether the Government treats it as
an asset stripping case or not; if it does not, then the modalities come,
You have not answered to that. Number one; whether you treat it as a
case of asset stripping. Number two; you have qualified the company in
which it was invested, with certain terms, which | have not used. You
should say that this statement was not yours, the statement in which you
had said that this is not morally correct, and, that the money has been
invested in a sick company, say, unprofitable.

SHRiI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: | am not saying.
SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: You are going back on that,
SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: | amn't.

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: Whatever you have stated on 31*
of May, and certain statement which was being made on 4" June by
another Cabinet Minister, was it authorised by you or by the Cabinset or by
someone else? | would like to have a clarification about the Cabinet system
of governance.
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SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: Sir, under this Calling Attention, it is
very difficult for me to answer that. ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: As far as VSNL is concerned, you
are the authority. You say you are not the authority. The Cabinet Minister
has spoken on behalf of the TATAs or on behali of the party, but not on
behalf of the Ministry of Communications, because, after disinvestment, as
you have very clearly said, it is your Ministry. It has got nothing to do with
that. But the Press conference was held on the 5" June. | would like that
you should say at least that it was not authorised by your Ministry; the
Press conference on this issue was held by the Minister of Disinvestmeant.
The clarification should come.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: Sir, the members of the Council of
Ministers are competent enough tc address Press conferences. It is not my
job to brief my colleague. It is only the Prime Minister who can allocate
business. 5o far as the Press conference of the Minister of Disinvestment is
concerned, | have no objection to his Press conference.

SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN: Sir, | need your protection. The
Minister, in his reply, has confused us about the dates on which the notices
were received. | particularly asked about the dates. | have asked whether
the Government nominee has enough time to consult his senior, superior
Ministers about what is to be done. Again, if the Minister refers to the
second paragraph of his own statement, it is very clear that a notice for
convening the 127" mesting of the Board of Directors of VSNL for 28" May,
2002 was received on 21% May, 2002. What does that mean? The notice
was received on 21* May. You have also clarified in your statement that on
17" May, Mr. Bhave replied, saying that he would not be available. That
means, he knew about the meeting before 21* May. As regards the
Agenda, was it received one day before or was it received on 21* May? It
is not clear. My second point is this.

SHRI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: Let me reply to your first point before |
forget it.

SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN: Let me complete my second point
also. It is very strange that not only in the Agenda the name of the
company was not mentioned but also in the Board meeting the name of the
company was not discussed at all.  What ware the TATAs trying to hide?
Did the Director object saying that he wanted to know the name of the
company? As you have suggested in your reply, all of you assumed that it
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must be a sister company. But who knows whether it is somebody else's
company? |t is very strange.

SHRAI PRAMOD MAHAJAN: Sir, Prithviraj Chavanji will appreciate
that | am here to answer on behalf of the Government. How can | answer
what exactly the TATAs are trying to hide? Even if | indirectly or
sarcastically answer, they will charge me that | am talking on behalf of the
TATAs. | don't want to incur the wrath of Dipankarji while answering
Prithviraj Chavanji. | don't want to go into that.

As regards the dates, lat me try to clear the confusion to the best
of my ability., There are two Directors, one is Mr. Rakesh Kurar, who
received a notice and the Agenda on 21* May of the meeting of 28™ May.
Another Director is Mr. Yashwant Bhave who received a Circular Resolution
on 17" May informing him about his induction as a Director. tn that it was
mentioned that there was a meeting on 28" May. This was neither a notice
for the meeting nor an Agenda. The Government Director, Mr. Yashwant
Bhave, received the Agenda only 24 hours before the meeting. One
Director received the Agenda 7 days before and the other Director received
it 24 hours before. Anyhow, as he was not going, there was no question
about it. Forget about this controversy. When any company is talking about
an investment to the tune of Rs.1,200 crores in ancther company, net giving
seven days' notice and mentioning the company's name, | don't think, is a
good corporate governance.

SHRI PRITHVIRAJ CHAVAN: Sir, we demanded a White Paper.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI): No. That is
enough.

ot yHlE AET TR, A% O BON &, T9Y wige € &) ... (=),

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOQURI): Now, we will
take up the Short Duration Discussion on the serious situation arising out of
the deterioration of the finances of the States and unsustainable debt
burden of such States, leading to severe curtailment on development
activities.
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